
 

WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 

 MEETING AGENDA 

SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING 

 
 

Michael W. Hutson, Chair, and Mark Maxwell, Vice Chair 
Donald Edmunds, Tom Krent, Philip Sanzica, Robert M. Schultz 

Thomas Strat, John J. Tagle, and Lon M. Ullmann 

   

October 25, 2011 7:30 P.M. Council Board Room 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES – October 11, 2011 Regular Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 
8. PRESENTATION BY CITY MANAGER – Evolution to Achieve Organizational 

Sustainability 
 
9. TRANSIT CENTER “PRE-WORKSHOP” DISCUSSION – Dialogue with City 

Engineer Steve Vandette 
 

10. POTENTIAL REZONING APPLICATION 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 

contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working 
days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2011 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Hutson called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:30 p.m. on October 11, 2011 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Paul Evans, Zoning & Compliance Specialist 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-10-058 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-10-059 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the September 13, 2011 Regular meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2011 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 

 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
8. CHAPTER 85 - SIGNS – Discuss Document 
 

There was general Planning Commission discussion on Chapter 85 Signs. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMPENSATION 

 
Resolution # PC-2011-10-060 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission understands the gravity of the city’s revenue 
shortfall due to the current economic situation and the resulting decline of property 
values in the city.  The Planning Commission fully supports the actions of City Council, 
City Management and all City Employees in their commitment to proactively address 
this difficult situation; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Be it known that in an effort to control costs the Planning Commission has 
reduced its meeting schedule from three (3) meetings per month to two (2) meetings per 
month.  This action eliminated one third of the overhead costs associated with Planning 
Commission operations.  These costs included, but are not limited to, staff time of the 
Planning Department, City Attorney’s Office, Building Services and Community Affairs, 
consultant services, as well as Planning Commissioner remuneration.  Additionally, the 
Commission’s education, Publication and Travel budget has been reduced by 70%; 
and,  
 
WHEREAS, It is public knowledge that every employee in the city has taken a minimum 
of a 10% reduction in compensation.  The members of the Planning Commission wish 
to publicly thank each and every employee for the sacrifices they have made in order to 
assist in the elimination of the city’s revenue shortfall; and, 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT OCTOBER 11, 2011 
  
 
 

3 
 

WHEREAS, It is the consensus of this Commission that any and all compensated 
elected officials, board or commission members should make those same sacrifices, not 
because the result will have a major impact upon the city’s budget, but because it is 
simply the right thing to do. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission requests that City 
Council reduce our per meeting remuneration by 10% effective immediately. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION PASSED 

 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2011 PC Minutes\Draft\10-11-11 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



PC 2011.10.25 
Agenda Item # 9 

 

 
 
 
 
DATE: October 18, 2011 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: TRANSIT CENTER “PRE-WORKSHOP” DISCUSSION – Dialogue with City 

Engineer Steve Vandette 
 
 
City Council granted Preliminary Site Plan Approval to the project on September 20, 2010, 
subject to a design workshop being held prior to Final Site Plan Approval.  The project will 
need to be revised as a result of Birmingham’s non-participation.   
 
City Council approved the MDOT Capital Contract for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility on 
September 12, 2011.  The City now has two years to complete construction of the project.   
 
The City is in the process of soliciting bids for Architectural/Engineer (A/E) consultant 
services.  The A/E consultant will be selected in November, 2011, and will prepare final 
design plans for the project. 
 
The City Engineer requested placement on the agenda to update the Planning Commission 
on the Transit Center Project.  This meeting will be opportunity to discuss the design 
workshop that will be held after the City selects the Architectural/Engineer (A/E) consultant.  
Further, the meeting will serve as a pre-workshop meeting to get the Planning Commission 
thinking about some solutions to some design questions.  There are more design questions 
now that we have a bridge, including style and how it connects to the building.   
 
Please be prepared to discuss this item at the October 25, 2011 Special/Study meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. City Council Resolution #2010-09-202 
2. Approved Preliminary Site Plan (Addendum #1 from A/E RFP) 
3. City Council memo dated September 9, 2011 
4. MDOT Contract 
5. Status of Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility and Planning Commission Input at Future 

Workshop Meeting  
 
G:\Transit Center\October 25, 2011 PC Meeting\PC Memo 10 25 2011.docx 



PC 2011.10.25 
Agenda Item # 9 

 

 
 
 
 
DATE: October 18, 2011 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: TRANSIT CENTER “PRE-WORKSHOP” DISCUSSION – Dialogue with City 

Engineer Steve Vandette 
 
 
City Council granted Preliminary Site Plan Approval to the project on September 20, 2010, 
subject to a design workshop being held prior to Final Site Plan Approval.  The project will 
need to be revised as a result of Birmingham’s non-participation.   
 
City Council approved the MDOT Capital Contract for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility on 
September 12, 2011.  The City now has two years to complete construction of the project.   
 
The City is in the process of soliciting bids for Architectural/Engineer (A/E) consultant 
services.  The A/E consultant will be selected in November, 2011, and will prepare final 
design plans for the project. 
 
The City Engineer requested placement on the agenda to update the Planning Commission 
on the Transit Center Project.  This meeting will be opportunity to discuss the design 
workshop that will be held after the City selects the Architectural/Engineer (A/E) consultant.  
Further, the meeting will serve as a pre-workshop meeting to get the Planning Commission 
thinking about some solutions to some design questions.  There are more design questions 
now that we have a bridge, including style and how it connects to the building.   
 
Please be prepared to discuss this item at the October 25, 2011 Special/Study meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. City Council Resolution #2010-09-202 
2. Approved Preliminary Site Plan (Addendum #1 from A/E RFP) 
3. City Council memo dated September 9, 2011 
4. MDOT Contract 
5. Status of Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility and Planning Commission Input at Future 

Workshop Meeting 
6. City Council Presentation dated September 20, 2010 

 
G:\Transit Center\October 25, 2011 PC Meeting\PC Memo 10 25 2011.docx 









hamiltonjm
Text Box
Addendeum #1 - Attachment 1



hamiltonjm
Text Box
Addendum #1 - Attachment 2



hamiltonjm
Text Box
Addendum #1 - Attachment 3



hamiltonjm
Text Box
Addendum #1 - Attachment 4



hamiltonjm
Text Box
Addendum # 1 - Attachment 5



hamiltonjm
Text Box
Addendum #1 - Attachment 6



 
 
September 9, 2011 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
   Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of MDOT Capital Contract for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility, 

MDOT Contract No. 2011-0231, Project No. 113143 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the attached MDOT Capital Contract No. 2011-0231 
with the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) for the purpose of fixing the rights and 
obligations of each agency for the final design and construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit 
Facility.  The agreement is based on standard MDOT contract language, similar to MDOT contracts 
approved by City Council for federally funded major road projects.  Furthermore, staff recommends 
that the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute the contract.  
   
Relocation of Train Platform to Troy Side: 
 
After Birmingham’s withdrawal from the Transit Center project, the tunnel linking the cities was 
deleted and the project was revised to eliminate improvements in Birmingham.  As part of these 
revisions, the platform was relocated to the Troy side of the Canadian National (CN) railroad.  (copy 
of the previous status report is attached). 
 
As necessary planning took place to implement this change, we were informed that the platform on 
the Troy side required a commitment from Canadian National (CN) railroad to allow the necessary 
track improvements to switch the AMTRAK train from the west track to the east track.  This 
commitment and preliminary switch design plan was secured, however a financial commitment for 20 
year track and switch maintenance, as required by the Federal Rail Administration (FRA), proved 
problematic as neither the City nor AMTRAK was willing to assume the cost of maintaining the 
switches.  Additionally, the east track may be removed by CN in the future due to its poor condition 
and lower freight traffic.  Should that happen, a substantial investment in switches to bring the 
AMTRAK train to the Troy side would be lost. 
 
Proposed Site Plan: 
 
The proposed site plan places the platform on the Birmingham side in CN right-of-way and adds a 
bridge over the tracks from the Troy Multi-Modal Transit building to the platform.  No property from 
Birmingham is required for this design.  There will be no access to the platform from the Birmingham 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



2 
 

side, but the revised plan allows access in the future if Birmingham can acquire the necessary 
property.   An elevator and stairs are included on both sides of the bridge.  With the elimination of the 
track switches, grant funding continues to be sufficient to cover the estimated cost of the Troy Multi-
Modal Transit Facility, from final design through construction and completion of all improvements. 
 
Contract Details and Requirements: 
 
The Contract provides funding for the final design and construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit 
Facility, which must be completed within 2 years of Contract approval.  On August 23, 2011 The FRA 
indicated to the City that this Contract must be approved by September 16, 2011; immediately 
following their approval of the Environmental Assessment (EA).  The EA was recently approved by 
the Federal Rail Administration on September 9, 2011.  Approval of the Contract at the regular 
meeting of September 12th is the first and last opportunity for this contract to be approved by Council.  
If the City does not approve the Contract by September 16, 2011, the FRA indicated that the $8.5 
million grant will be reallocated to another project elsewhere in the country, possibly to another state.     
 
The Contract as submitted is based on estimated costs, which is standard with all MDOT contracts.   
These contracts are prepared for the purpose of obligating the project and before actual costs are 
known.  The City’s reimbursements from MDOT, under the contract, will be based on the actual cost 
incurred as the project proceeds through final design and construction.   
 
Next Steps: 
 
The following is an outline of steps following approval of the Contract.  The process begins with other 
approvals required by FRA; followed by selection of a design consultant, project manager, and 
ending with project completion is as follows: 
 

•   FRA and City Approval of AMTRAK lease agreement  
•  FRA Approval of updated Statement of Work with addition of the Bridge 
•  FRA and City Approval of Host (CN Railroad) Railroad Agreement 
•  RFP for Architectural/Engineering (A/E) Design Consultant 
•  RFP for Construction Manager at Risk (CMR)  
•  FRA Approval of updated Project Management Plan with addition of the Bridge  
•  FRA Approval of updated Financial Plan with addition of the Bridge  
•  Award Contract to A/E Design Consultant 
•  Conduct Design Workshop with A/E Consultant and Planning Commission 
•  City Approval of Revised Site Plan 
•  Complete Final A/E Design Plans 
•  Construction Manager Selection and Construction Procurement 
•  Permit Acquisition 
•  Construction 
•  Final Inspection, Project Acceptance and Grant Close Out 

 
The timeline for completion of all steps is two (2) years from date of Contract approval; September 
12, 2011 to September 11, 2013.   
 
 



3 
 

 
Operation and Maintenance Costs:  
 
The operation and maintenance costs of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility are estimated at 
$30,000 per year, including but not limited to utilities, snow removal, building and building 
maintenance.  Another estimate of these costs will be done following final site design.  The building 
site will be designed to minimize long term maintenance cost.  A lease agreement with AMTRAK will 
offset these costs, as will vending, taxi and other agreements to be negotiated following this Contract 
approval.   
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The engineer’s estimate of design and construction is $8,484,686.  There is $8,485,212 in federal 
funding provided under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) pursuant to 
the FRA’s High-Speed Intercity Passenger Rail program (HSIPR).  The project’s design and 
construction is 100% funded with federal ARRA funds.  The project is also funded by a $1.3 million 
grant from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA).  The FTA funds are currently not required for 
design and construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility.   
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
The format and content of the Contract has been reviewed by the City Attorney’s Office and is 
consistent with past MDOT contracts approved by City Council for various road projects such as 
Rochester Road, Long Lake Road, Big Beaver and Stephenson Highway projects. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED AND APPROVED:  
 
____________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
 
 
G:\Transit Center\MDOT Agreements\To CC re MDOT Capital Contract_r5.doc 

























































Status of Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 
and 

Planning Commission Input at Future Workshop Meeting  
 

A. Status Report by Steven Vandette, City Engineer 
 

B. Items needing Planning Commission Input at Future Workshop Meeting 
 

1. What should be added to the building façade to create greater visual interest? 
 

2. What should be added to the building to create a more identifiable building entrance/ 
 

3. What should be added to the plaza area to create a greater sense of arrival i.e. major 
point of interest.  Should the compass be replaced? 

 
4. What should be added to or near the building to create visual interest with human 

scale elements at the building?   
 

5. What transitional features should be added between the building, the bridge and the 
platform? 

 
6. What additional, cost effective, sustainable design features should be added to the 

site or building?  (Note:  Silver LEED status is the goal, but because the cost of 
certification is not covered by grant funding, the Transit Center will not become LEED 
certified.) 

 
7. Which LEED design features should be eliminated.  Should the green roof be 

eliminated? 
 

8. Should the building be moved? Where? 
 

9. If the building stays in its current location, should the door to the building be moved?  
Should the location of the elevator inside the building be moved? 

 
10. What elements of the building architecture should be carried through to the bridge? 

 

11. Should the current landscaping style be carried through to areas impacted by the 
elimination of the ramp and the potential relocation of the building?   

 
 

C. Items that can’t be changed: 
 

1. Doyle Drive bus slips 
 

2. Location of pedestrian crossings 
 

3. Parking lot modifications 
 



4. Bridge location 
 

5. Platform location and platform design elements 
 

6. Building size 
 

7. Building floor plan (except elevator location and additions derived from the Planning 
Commission’s Workshop) 
 

8. Building façade (except additions derived from the Planning Commission’s 
Workshop) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Transit Center\October 25, 2011 PC Meeting\PC preWorkshop Agenda.doc 



Intermodal 
Transit Facility
City of Troy

City of Birmingham

September 20, 2010



Presentation Outline

I. Introduction

II. Site Access

III. Transit Facility Building

IV. Platform Shelter & Canopy

V. Site Plan & Retaining Walls

VI. Site Amenities/Landscaping

VII.Discussion



Site Vicinity Map



Transit Facility Building



Building Floor Plan



North Elevation

Building Elevations

East Elevation



Building Elevations

South Elevation

West Elevation



Platform Shelter & Canopy

STAIRS RAMP



• Green Roof

• Storm Water Management

• Rainwater Harvesting

• Geothermal HVAC

• LED Lighting

• Regional Materials

• Recycled Materials



Site Cross-Section Illustration



Site Plan & Retaining Walls



Site Plan

C
ol

e 
St

re
et



Site Plan                                         TROY



Site Plan                          BIRMINGHAM



Site Accessibility



Retaining Wall Elevation               TROY



Retaining Wall Elevation               TROY



Retaining Wall Elevation   BIRMINGHAM



Site Lighting - Fixtures

“OC”

“OA”

“OG”



Site Lighting Photometrics



Site Amenities/Landscaping



Site Landscape – Overall Plan



Site Amenities/Landscape TROY



Site Amenities – Bus Shelter



Site Amenities/Landscape TROY



Compass Examples



Site Amenities – Public Art



Site Amenities/Landscape     BIRMINGHAM



Site Amenities – Site Finishes



Site Amenities – Site Furnishings



Site Amenities – Plant Material

Prairie Fire Crab

Linden

River Birch

Prairie Fire Crab

Gingko Jane Magnolia Norway Spruce



Site Amenities – Plant Material

Karl Foerster 

Feather Reed Grass

Cardinal Flower

Endless Summer Hydrangea

Juniper

Knockout Rose

Blue Flag Iris

Hameln Fountain Grass

Shasta Daisy



Discussion



  PC 2011.10.25 
  Agenda Item # 10 

 

 
 
DATE: October 18, 2011 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: POTENTIAL REZONING – South side of Wattles, East of Rochester Road (1100-1200 

Wattles), Section 23, Approximately 2 acres in size, Presently zoned R-1C (One Family 
Residential) 

 
A developer is considering rezoning the subject property to RT One Family Attached, and requested 
the opportunity to discuss the potential rezoning application with the Planning Commission.   
 
The parcel is located on the south side of Wattles, east of Rochester, in Section 23.  The parcel is 
approximately 2 acres in area and is zoned R-1C (One Family Residential).  The properties to the north, 
south and east are zoned R-1C and are used as single family homes.  The property to the west is zoned 
NN and is used as a commercial daycare.   
 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the area as Single Family Residential, abutting Neighborhood 
Node.  One of the goals of the Master Plan was the protection of single family residential 
neighborhoods. 
 
The RT district requires minimum 5,000 square foot lots with minimum 40 foot width lots.  Attached 
dwellings are also permitted, but not proposed in the sketch. 
 
If the applicant intends for this development to serve as a transition between NN and R-1C, it needs to 
be made clear how this is intended to be accomplished.  Potential tools include landscaping, berms, 
open space, and walls.  
 
At one time a different applicant sought a conditional rezoning of this property, to O-1 office.  The 
process was terminated for reasons unknown to the Planning Department.   
 
The applicant seeks direction from the Planning Commission on this matter.  Note the site plan and 
elevation drawings were provided for discussion purposes only, they do not meet site plan 
requirements nor have they been reviewed by the Planning Department.   
 
Please be prepared to discuss the item at the October 25, 2011 Planning Commission Special/Study 
meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Conceptual site plan with elevations 
3. City of Troy Master Plan (excerpts) 

 
cc: Applicant 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Potential Rezonings\1100-1120 Wattles\Potential Rezoning PC Memo 10 25 2011.docx 



1100-1120 E. Wattles

10/18/2011

Legend

1: 1,446

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1200241 241Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Ponds and Basins

Streams and Creeks

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



1100-1120 E. Wattles

10/18/2011

Legend

1: 1,446

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1200241 241Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Current Zoning Ordinance

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MR) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins

Streams and Creeks

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3













91

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Single-Family Residential: 

The Social Neighborhood

Social units of the City.• 
Walkable, safe places to live.• 
Centered on schools or other community • 
facilities.
Linked with nearby services.• 

The predominant land use in the City of Troy 
is single family residential.  This category is 

intended to preserve the existing quality 

residential neighborhoods of the City while 

recognizing the need for other uses that 

support the main function of residential 

areas.  The single family areas of the City are 
arranged around Social Neighborhoods.  Social 
Neighborhoods are unique, self-contained 
areas bounded by Troy’s main thoroughfares.  
They are mostly single-family areas centered 
on community elements like schools or parks.  
Social Neighborhoods are described in more 
depth at the end of this Chapter, and are 
illustrated by the solid circles shown on the 
Neighborhoods Map.

In the Single Family Residential areas of the 
City, non-residential uses will be considered 
only when the use is clearly incidental to and 

ancillary to single-family residential, or when 
the use is a park, school, or other community-
oriented public or quasi-public use.

The Social Neighborhoods of the City are 
bounded by the mile square grid pattern of 
Troy’s thoroughfares.  These defi ned areas can 
provide the sense of place that Vision 2020 and 
this Master Plan are striving for.  In most cases, 

they have a school as central focus.  Schools 
continue to be a means of stimulating social 
interaction on many fronts; children establish 
their fi rst friendships, parents meet other local 
parents, schools often host public events.  
Furthermore, the play areas at school provide 
readily accessible recreation opportunities.  
Many Social Neighborhoods in Troy have 
sidewalks promoting accessibility and exercise, 
and Troy schools have walking paths that are 
open to the public.

The ideal Social Neighborhood will exemplify 
the safer, more enjoyable walking environments 
envisioned by the “Safe Routes to School” 
program.

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL



92 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT

Neighborhoods are approximately 15 • 
minutes walking from end-to-end.  

A wide variety of residential architecture • 
characterizes the various neighborhoods 
of the City.  Non-residential architecture for 
schools and places of worship complement 
the residential setting.   

BUILDING LOCATION

Homes must be located in relation to the • 
street in a manner that complements 
surrounding, established homes.

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

Walks which link residences to destinations • 
such as schools, libraries, abutting 
neighborhood commercial service areas, 
coff ee shops, and other neighborhoods are 
critical.

The neighborhoods must include improved • 
perimeter walks that are functional and 
aesthetically pleasing.  These exterior 
walks will directly connect to the activity 
nodes at major intersections and adjacent 
neighborhoods.  Wide walks will be 
constructed which will incorporate 
landscaping and innovative stormwater 
detention areas.  These areas will be 
artistically developed, but functional 
landforms that carry visual interest.  The 
perimeter walks have the ability to bring 
residents of adjacent neighborhoods 
together. 

Neighborhoods should be connected to one • 
another to increase the area where residents 
can readily navigate on foot and expand the 
boundaries of social interaction.  Crosswalks 
near the mid-mile areas of each grid will 
improve outside linkages.

Lighting will not encroach on adjacent • 
properties, and will be used carefully to 
provide safety and security, and for accent 
illumination.



93

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Neighborhood Nodes: 

The Economic Neighborhood

Located at intersections of the City’s main • 
roads.
Work together with Social Neighborhoods to • 
create a more livable community.
Mixed use.• 
Provide neighborhood gathering places.• 
Accommodate the daily needs of residents.• 

Neighborhood Nodes are the concentrated, 

commercial and mixed-use centers situated 

at major intersections of Troy thoroughfares 

that serve as the center of the City’s Economic 

Neighborhoods.  The nodes are specifi cally 
identifi ed on pages 95 and 96.  Economic 
Neighborhoods are destinations created as 
“go to” places that take on a social role, serving 
both as a place to meet basic needs of the 
community and as 21st century village centers.  
The attributes of Economic Neighborhoods 
are described in more detail in the fi nal 
section of this Chapter, and the urban design 
characteristics of Neighborhood Nodes will be 
described in depth in Chapter 10.  The nodes 
will typically permit a mix of commercial, offi  ce, 
and high-density residential, although the 
predominant uses in any Neighborhood Node 
development must be in keeping with the 
node characteristics described on pages 95 and 

96.  Industrial uses will not be permitted in the 
Neighborhood Nodes. 

The Economic Neighborhoods of Troy also 
center on the square mile grid system.  Unlike 
the social neighborhood, the Economic 

Neighborhoods are centered on major road 

intersections where commercial and offi  ce 

development occurs.  When destinations are 
created, these nodes become a “go to” place 
and take on a social role.  Each of these nodes 
serves four quadrants of the overlapping social 
neighborhoods and has the ability to bring 
residents of four neighborhoods together.  

These Economic Neighborhood nodes 
are destinations that draw people, visually 
distinguished from the balance of corridor strips 
through greater density and scale.  Variation in 
building height will often be used to separate 
the node from the surrounding area, but will 
not be so extreme as to visually overpower 
abutting neighborhoods.  The separation of 
building heights at intersections with the 
“between” segments of corridors stimulates the 
visual concept of “pulsing” development and 
sets up a system of visual anchors.   

Moderately dense residential environments 
may be encouraged within some nodes to 
provide steady activity for longer periods of the 
day.  In these cases, residences may be mixed 
with offi  ces on upper fl oors or be developed 
immediately adjacent to the commercial areas.  
Connections between the commercial activity 
and residences must be directly and seamlessly 
integrated.  

During the course of the planning process, the 
Planning Commission closely analyzed the need 
for additional neighborhood nodes throughout 
the City.  The City will continue to consider 
the demand for additional nodes as part of 
subsequent plan revisions.

NEIGHBORHOOD NODES



94 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT
These nodes are within a fi fteen • 
minute walking distance of residential 
neighborhoods to permit alternative modes 
of transportation.  

Development will be denser and taller than • 
the surrounding area, encouraging visual 
prominence to signal a gathering space.

Nodes should be generally confi ned to a • 
1,000 foot radius from a major intersection.

The nodes provide uses and spaces that • 
attract and welcome neighborhood 
residents.  

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Buildings should be separated from the • 
right-of-way line by a landscaped greenbelt, 
one lane of off -street parking or a pedestrian 
walk, or a combination of these.  

Primary parking areas will be located within • 
rear or interior side yards.

Off -street parking should be screened from • 
the public right-of-way by a knee wall or low 
decorative fence with a hedge of plantings.

Walks will connect adjacent developments • 
and the public sidewalks.

Well-defi ned crosswalks with timed • 
signalization will permit safe crossings.

Flexible use of space allowing modest • 
outdoor gathering spaces, such as plazas, 
will be encouraged.

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES
Buildings should be between two and three • 
stories, although one–story structures 
accommodating gas stations or other 
special situations may be permitted.  

One-story buildings should have a minimum • 
exterior height of sixteen feet.

A ground level story should have a • 

minimum height of twelve feet from 
fi nished fl oor to fi nished ceiling.  

Facades facing major thoroughfares will • 
be treated as fronts and should have a 
minimum of half transparent glass and 
special architectural design treatments.  

Fenestration (the arrangement of windows • 
and doors) should be highlighted through 
the use of awnings, overhangs or trim 
detailing.  

Lighting will be carefully managed so as not • 
to encroach on adjacent residential areas.

The following pages contain a table 
describing the primary intended uses and 

character of the Neighborhood Nodes designated 
on the Future Land Use Map.  Individual Nodes are 
numbered and identifi ed on the Economic Nodes 

Map following the table.



95

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Node/Intersection Primary Uses and Character

A 14 Mile and 
Dequindre Road

Non-residential uses catering to the day-to-day needs of the workforce in the 
surrounding industrial area.  Restaurants and convenience needs integrated with 
banks and other service uses in compact developments would suit the needs of this 
area.

B Maple Road and 
Dequindre Road

The unique neighborhood node is home to a collection of uses serving the local 
Polish population.  Uses complementary to the cultural center and bank which help 
this area serve as a gathering place and focus area for the neighborhood could 
include limited housing, service uses, or specialty retail and dining.

C John R. Road and 
Maple Road

The node would best serve the area with a predominantly commercial mix of uses 
catering to the immediate residential area coming and going from their homes. The 
node should serve as a transition to the more intense commercial development to 
the south.

D Big Beaver Road and 
Dequindre Road

This area should be a high-intensity, high-density, compact area that serves as a 
notable entry point to the community.  Development may include residential, retail, 
office, and service-oriented uses, but should be designed to create a very noticeable 
“gateway” into Troy with its complex, high-density, mixed-use character.

E Wattles Road and 
Dequindre Road

The predominant use in this node should be offices, both medical and professional.  
Limited commercial service uses designed to complement the main focus of the 
area as an office node serving this area of the City may also be permissible, if clearly 
secondary to the primary office character of the area.

F John R Road and 
Wattles Road

This node may include all uses from high-density residential in combination with 
restaurants, limited office, and retail.  Development at this intersection should include 
at least two of these uses in any one development, in order to better complement 
and strengthen the already mixed-use character of the node.

G Rochester Road and 
Wattles Road

A careful blend of commercial uses and office uses, effectively transitioned into the 
adjoining residential neighborhoods, should be the main uses at this intersection.  
Recent residential development in the area has taken pedestrian access to the 
intersection into consideration with effective pathways and sidewalks, and any new 
development at the intersection must continue this positive trend.

H Livernois Road and 
Wattles Road 

This lower-intensity area is characterized by single-family residential directly abutting 
the southwest corner of the intersection, and uses which generate only sporadic 
activity, such as churches and day care.  This node contains the Troy Museum and 
Historic Village. New development or redevelopment at this node must be especially 
considerate of the adjoining residential and low-intensity uses and should not 
include any retail or restaurant uses.  Office and other uses similar to the existing uses 
would likely provide the best combination here.

I Crooks Road and 
Wattles Road

Development at this location should be low-impact and provide a high benefit to 
the neighborhood using the least amount of land.  Compact, walkable mixed use 
development with a combination of uses serving the immediate surroundings would 
be an ideal fit.  Integrated compact development which would allow a user to park 
once and meet several daily needs would be a positive contribution to the node. The 
City also recognizes that expansion of the White Chapel Cemetery into the northeast 
corner of this node would be appropriate.

J Dequindre Road and 
Long Lake Road

Predominantly commercial, catering to both local needs and regional traffic, 
new development and redevelopment should be mostly commercial, identifying 
opportunities for small office mixed-use and variations in floor area to allow for 
a wide range of commercial types.  Pedestrian access to the adjoining area and 
effective screening should be primary areas of focus during the site design process.



96 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Node/Intersection Primary Uses and Character

K John R Road and 
Long Lake Road

Like Crooks Road and Wattles Road, compact, walkable mixed use development with 
a combination of uses serving the immediate surroundings would be an ideal fit.  
Integrated compact development which would allow a user to park once and meet 
several daily needs would be a positive contribution to the node.

L Rochester Road and 
Long Lake Road

Intersections L, M, and U and should remain, predominantly commercial, catering 
to local needs and regional traffic, new development and redevelopment should be 
mostly commercial and should serve to further enhance this successful commercial 
area.  Opportunities for integrated residential or office development should be 
considered only when clearly secondary to commercial development.

M Livernois Road and 
Long Lake Road

Intersections L, M, and U and should remain, predominantly commercial, catering 
to local needs and regional traffic, new development and redevelopment should be 
mostly commercial and should serve to further enhance this successful commercial 
area.  Opportunities for integrated residential or office development should be 
considered only when clearly secondary to commercial development.

N Dequindre Road and 
Square Lake Road

Low-intensity commercial uses should remain, but redevelopment should include an 
integrated compact residential component, live/work units, or small office.  Service-
oriented use development in combination with new residential development would 
provide a unique setting here.

O John R Road and 
Square Lake Road

Near a known heron rookery, this node must be careful to respect this important 
natural resource.  New development or redevelopment should complement the 
churches and limited commercial uses in the area, and should incorporate above-
average landscaping, natural buffers, and conscientious site design to enhance the 
known natural features in the area.

P Rochester Road and 
Square Lake Road

Major commercial uses dominate and should continue to provide a foundation for 
this neighborhood node.  While uses in the area may cater to regional traffic, service 
uses, retail, and limited office uses designed to provide service to the immediate 
residential neighborhood should be incorporated into any new development or 
redevelopment plans.

Q Livernois Road and 
Square Lake Road

Development in this area should be especially considerate of the remaining historic 
asset of the neighborhood.  Adaptive use of existing historic structures must be 
considered before demolition or relocation of these resources.  Low-intensity uses 
working in conjunction with one another to form a central neighborhood village, 
walkable and accessible, would create an ideal complement to the predominantly 
residential surroundings.

R John R Road and 
South Boulevard

Small local commercial uses and office uses should be the focus of this node, to 
complement the large scale office development across the City’s boundary to the 
north, within the City of Rochester Hills.

S Rochester Road and 
South Boulevard

This neighborhood node provides a suitable mix of uses to cater to the daily needs 
of the immediate residential area, while also providing a unique opportunity for 
specialty retailers, compact walkable residential development, and small-scale office 
development in an integrated, mixed-use setting.

T Livernois Road and 
South Boulevard

Limited local commercial and housing for seniors in a dense development pattern 
should remain the primary focus of this neighborhood node.

U Crooks Road and 
South Boulevard

Intersections L, M, and U and should remain, predominantly commercial, catering 
to local needs and regional traffic, new development and redevelopment should be 
mostly commercial and should serve to further enhance this successful commercial 
area.  Opportunities for integrated residential or office development should be 
considered only when clearly secondary to commercial development.

 


	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. MINUTES
	October 11, 2011 Regular Meeting

	4. PUBLIC COMMENT
	5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT
	6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT
	7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT
	8. PRESENTATION BY CITY MANAGER
	9. TRANSIT CENTER “PRE-WORKSHOP” DISCUSSION
	Planning Commission Memorandum
	City Council Resolution #2010-09-202
	Approved Preliminary Site Plan
	City Council Memorandum, September 9, 2011
	MDOT Contract
	Status of Transit Facility and Workshop Agenda
	City Council Presentation, September 20, 2010

	10. POTENTIAL REZONING APPLICATION - 1100-1200 Wattles
	Planning Commission Memorandum
	Locational Maps
	Conceptual Site Plan w/Elevations
	Master Plan Land Patterns (excerpts)

	11. PUBLIC COMMENT
	12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT



